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Eagle Scout Builds New Aviary 
Sanctuary at Franklin Preserve

When the birds return to Franklin 
Township this spring they will find 
an aviary sanctuary at Franklin Pre-
serve awaiting their arrival, built by 
Franklin Township Resident Michael 
Marino, of Troop 62. 

“I built birdhouses for indigenous 
species of birds that are at risk be-
cause of development taking away 
their habitat,” says Michael. He said 
he learned a lot from completing the 
project and has a new appreciation 
for the detailed planning that goes 
into projects.

The project included four blue 
bird houses, four blue jay houses, 
three purple martin houses, and 
an owl box. The bird houses were 
mounted on 4’ x 4’ posts. He held 
workshops at his home with plenty 
of volunteers coming to help con-
struct the bird houses. Volunteers 
helped Michael in the Preserve 
this past December to dig the post 
holes and place the boxes in their 
appropriate place or, as in the case 
of the owl box, hang at an appro-
priate height in the trees.

Michael is a senior at Avon Grove High School and plans to 
attend college as a pre-med major in the fall.

Harrison Stanley (left) and 
Michael Marino (right) secure 
one of the purple martin bird-
houses.

Spotlight: Jim Dorazio, Yardworks
Jim Dorazio knows the 35 miles 

of roads in Franklin Township quite 
well.

As Yardworks  owner, and Frank-
lin Township’s winter roads con-
tractor, he along with his crew are 
responsible for salting, sanding and 
clearing the roads of snow each 
time winter weather hits our area.

Dorazio works closely with As-
sistant Township Manager Jeff East-
burn to determine what should be 
done to the roads based on the type of storm, the temperatures and 
the forecasts. 

When Yardworks is in full swing six trucks are out on the roads. 
When large amounts of snow falls he calls on Franklin Township farm-
er John Hocking to provide two additional tractors to clear the snow.

Looking back at the 2010-11 winter weather Jim says the hardest 
part was the back-to-back storms with little time between the storms 
to repair equipment and catch-up on missed sleep. A few times it 
was almost a losing battle to keep roads open with the wind causing 
snowdrifts throughout the Township. 

Keep up the good work Jim!

State Senator Pileggi Visits FT Supervisors

State Senator Dominic Pileggi (third from left) stopped by for breakfast with 
FT’s supervisors (left to right Overton, Skalish, Latimer, Brindle and Hughes) 
in February to get acquainted with the Township.

The Free School Act of 1834 required all townships to provide 
a free public education for its children. In rural communities like 
Franklin Township one-room schoolhouses were the best way to 
accomplish this goal. There were at least five one-room school-
houses in Franklin Township which include:

Maple Grove School was located on Schoolhouse Road and •	
built in the 1800s. It is currently a private residence. 
Auburn School was located on Auburn Road. With additions •	
to the original schoolhouse, it now serves as the Auburn Reg-
ular Baptist Church.
Franklin School was located on Route 896, north of Route 841 •	
and built in 1875. Additions were added and it is currently a 
private residence.
Kemblesville School was last located on Appleton Road just •	
south of the Chisel Creek Golf Course entrance. It was lost to 
fire and a residence now sits on the property.
Mt. Olivet School was located on Walker Road, near what re-•	
mains of the Baptist cemetery. The building no longer exists.

Franklin Township schools became a part of Avon Grove School 
District in 1953. In 1956, when Kemblesville Elementary School 
opened, the one-room schoolhouses were closed.

One FT resident, who wishes to remain anonymous, remem-
bers attending Maple Grove and Auburn schools in the mid-1940s. 
Students in grades 1-8 attended class together when he was in 
first grade. Then the students of Maple Grove and Auburn were 
combined and students in grades 1- 4 went to Auburn School 
and students in grades 5-8 went to Maple Grove School. He thinks 
the same arrangements were made at Franklin and Kemblesville 
schools. 

There was no running water at the one-room school houses, 
but there was electricity. Students would take a bucket to a neigh-
bor’s house and fill a crock at the school with the collected water. 
Each student had his or her own cup that was placed in the inkwell 
hole on the desk. There were two outhouses, one for boys and the 
other for girls. The building was heated with a coal burning pot-
bellied stove in the middle of the room. Students brought their 
lunches each day. The only sport played at his one-room school-
house was baseball.

Upon graduating eighth grade, students could further their 
education at Avon Grove High School.
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